

# **Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes**

# Date: 28 March 2007

Please Note: These minutes and the decisions recorded therein have not as yet been confirmed by Council as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

The Shire of Moora Vision and Mission Statement

Vision

Our vision is that:

The Moora region will be a place of brilliant opportunity over the next twenty years. Sustainable growth will result in a vibrant, healthy, wealthy and diverse community.

Mission

Our mission is:

To identify and stimulate growth through creative leadership and a willingness to get things done.

# SHIRE OF MOORA MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE MILING PAVILION, MILING WEDNESDAY 28 MARCH 2007

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
Ι.	DECLARATION OF OPENING & WELCOME OF VISITORS	3
2.	DISCLAIMER READING	3
3.	ATTENDANCE	3
	PUBLIC	3
	APOLOGIES	3
4.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST	3
5.	QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 5.24 OF THE ACT	4
6.	<b>RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE</b>	4
7.	APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	4
8.	PETITIONS AND MEMORIALS	4
9.	ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SHIRE PRESIDENT	5
10.	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS	5
	10.1 ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 14 MARCH 2007	5
11.	<u>REPORTS OF OFFICERS</u>	6
	11.1 <u>ADMINISTRATION</u>	6
	II.I.I Adoption of New Policy - Purchasing and Tender Policy * II.I.2 Shire of Moora Annual Compliance Audit Return for 2006 *	6 7
	11.1.3 Adoption of Shire of Moora Common Seal *	, 9

	11.2	FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT	10
		I.2. Statement of Financial Activity for Period Ended 28 February 2007*	10
		I I.2.2 Adoption of New Policy - Investment of Policy *	12
		1.2.3 Delegation 1.32 Investment of Municipal Funds and Reserve Funds *	13
	11.3	OPERATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	15
		11.3.1 Great Northern Highway Proposed Road Upgrades – Land Resum	
		Between Walebing and Bindi Bindi *	15
	11.4	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT	17
		11.4.1 Town Planning Scheme No 4 – Delegation of Powers	17
		11.4.2 Keeping Horses – Rural Townsite – J. & L. Timmins *	18
	11.5	ENVIRONMENTAL DEVELOPMENT	20
		Nil.	
	11.6	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT	20
		Nil.	
	11.7	SPORT AND RECREATION	21
		II.7.I "Be Active Coordinator" – February Report 2007 *	21
12.	<u>ELEC</u>	TED MEMBER MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	22
	Nil.		
13.	мот	IONS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF COUNCIL	22
	13.1	Corporate Wardrobe Policy	22
14.	ΝΟΤΙ	CE ON MOTIONS FOR THE NEXT COUNCIL MEETING	25
	Nil.		
15.	MAT	TERS BEHIND CLOSED DOORS	25
	Nil.		
16.	CLOS	SURE OF MEETING	25

Separate Attachments

- Item 11.1.2 2006 Compliance Audit Return
- Item 11.1.3 Common Seal Proof
- Item 11.2.1 Statement of Financial Activity for the Period Ended 28 February 2007
- Item 11.2.2 Draft Investment Policy
- Item 11.2.3 Delegation 1.32 Investment of Municipal Funds and Reserve Funds
- Item 11.3.1 MRWA Realignment Maps
- Item 11.4.2 Location/position map
- Item 11.7.1 Be Active Report February 2007

The Shire President declared the meeting open at 6.32pm, welcomed visitors and announced:

"Acknowledgment of Country"

I would like to show my respect and acknowledge to the traditional owners of this land and acknowledge their contribution to the Shire of Moora as I do for all its people.

# 2. DISCLAIMER READING

The Shire President read the following disclaimer:

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Moora for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during this meeting.

It is strongly advised that persons do not act on what is heard at this meeting and should only rely on written confirmation of Council's decision, which will be provided within fourteen (14) days of this meeting.

# 3. <u>ATTENDANCE</u>

SA Bryan	-	Presiding Member	-	Moora Town Ward	
CE Gardiner	-	Councillor	-	Moora Town Ward	
JL Craven	-	Councillor	-	Moora Town Ward	
CD Hawkins	-	Councillor	-	Moora Town Ward	
SJ Pond	-	Councillor	-	Koojan Ward	
AR Tonkin	-	Councillor	-	Coomberdale Ward	
WA Barrett-Lennard	-	Councillor	-	Bindi Bindi Ward	
JW McLagan	-	Councillor	-	Miling Ward	
D Clydesdale-Gebert	-	Councillor	-	Watheroo Ward	
SJ Deckert	-	Chief Executive Off	cer		
JÉ Ellis	- Financial Development Manager		nager		
JL Greay - Operational Development Manager		Manager			
MJ Prunster	- Community Development Manager				
BR Williams	-	Enterprise Development Manager		lanager	
PUBLIC					
Mr Neil Pearse	Mr Ian Seymour		Mr Wade Pearson		
Mr Terry Reynolds	Mr Ken Seymour		Mr J	im McNamara	

# <u>APOLOGIES</u>

Mrs Michelle Barnard

ML Wilson

Manager Health & Regulatory Services

# 4. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

\_

Nil

# 5. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 5.24 OF THE ACT

# Mr Ian Seymour

Stated that it was intended that the proceeds from the sale of the Miling Infant Health Centre building would go towards shade structures at the Miling Sports Ground, however it appears that in the Shire's Budget only half of the proceeds have been allocated to the shade structures with the balance going to the cricket nets. What actually happened to the proceeds and if it didn't happen as intended, could favourable consideration be given next year?

The Financial Development Manager advised that possibly the decision may have been lost in translation. We will also look at it during the budget review process.

# Mr Neil Pearse (on behalf of the Miling Co-op)

Stated that the pavement in front of the Miling Co-op and generally along the main road was falling into a state of disrepair. What is council's position on upgrading or improving the pavement in Miling, as it is becoming a hazard?

The Shire President advised that councils works committee will be meeting soon & will consider the work that is required in front of the Miling Co-op as part of budget deliberations.

# Mr Ken Seymour

Asked how many councillors and staff have read the Flood Study? He hoped the recommendations of the study would be taken on board.

The Shire President noted Mr Seymour's comments.

Mr Ian Seymour

Congratulated the Shire on the recent roadworks the Shire had done on the Watheroo/Miling, Miling West, Miling North, Seymour/Richardson & Dalwallinu West Roads.

# 6. <u>RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE</u>

Nil

# 7. <u>APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE</u>

Nil

# 8. <u>PETITIONS AND MEMORIALS</u>

Nil

# 9. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SHIRE PRESIDENT

- Last night a post season bush fire meeting was held in Moora. It was attended by the local brigade members, Mr Vince Hilder from the Department of Environment & Conservation & the Regional Director for the Midwest FESA, Mr Russell Hayes who commended Mr Jim McNamara's work during his relief assistance at the FESA office in Geraldton. He also commended him on his involvement in the control of the recent Toodyay & Dwellingup fires.
- Badgingarra hosted the Small Schools Swimming Carnival in Moora last Friday 23<sup>rd</sup> March; the overall winner was Dandaragan with Miling coming 2nd.
- Also on Friday 23<sup>rd</sup> March I participated in a telephone link up with the Heritage Council of WA as the local government representative in the process for the historic Berkshire Valley Farm being considered for heritage listing.
  - Cr Pond updated the meeting on a number of regional matters including:
    - Regional Waste Management discussions that were had at the CMVROC
      - Review of the grain rail network
      - Health service plan
      - Biosecurity and Agricultural Management Bill and its impact on ZCA's
- Congratulations to Mr Des Seymour for becoming a Freeman of the Shire of Moora an acknowledgement ceremony will be held on the 24<sup>th</sup> April 2007.
- The Shire President reminded Councillors of the Moora Country Campout over the Easter weekend.
- On Monday 19<sup>th</sup> March Cr's Barrett-Lennard, Craven, Pond & Clydesdale-Gebert along with the Chief Executive Officer, Enterprise Development Manager & Community Development Manager visited Chittering Shire and met with their Shire President & Chief Executive Officer. The Shire President welcomed them over a light lunch and discussed the planning & subdivision problems encountered in their shire. Following lunch their Chief Executive Officer took them on a tour through the Chittering Valley looking at all the new subdivisions. On return their senior planner gave a power point presentation.
- Congratulations to the Moora Pony Club for holding a very successful equestrian event over last weekend.

# 10. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

# 10.1 ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 14 MARCH 2007

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION

58/07 Moved Cr McLagan, seconded Cr Clydesdale-Gebert that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 14 March 2007, be confirmed as a true and correct record of the meeting.

CARRIED 9/0

#### II. <u>REPORTS OF OFFICERS</u>

#### II.I ADMINISTRATION

#### 11.1.1 ADOPTION OF NEW POLICY - PURCHASING AND TENDER POLICY

FILE REFERENCE:PL/POPIREPORT DATE:22 March 2007APPLICANT/PROPONENT:NilOFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST:NilPREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES:NilAUTHOR:Jo-Anne Ellis, Financial Development ManagerATTACHMENTS:Draft Purchasing and Tender Policy

#### **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To consider and adopt a Purchasing and Tender Policy to deliver a best practice approach and procedures to purchasing in the Shire of Moora and to ensure consistency for all purchasing activities within the Shire of Moora.

#### **BACKGROUND:**

A 2007 amendment to the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 now require all Local Governments to have a purchasing policy in relation to contracts for other persons to supply goods or services where the consideration is, or is expected to be, \$100,000 or less.

#### COMMENT:

A model Purchasing Policy was developed by WALGA and distributed to member councils as a template to assist with meeting the new requirements. This policy has been reviewed and adapted to be relevant and appropriate for the Shire of Moora.

All Councils policies require reviewing and updating. As part of this process a new numbering system is suggested. The policy number recommended for this policy is FIN 002.

#### **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Adoption of this draft policy will create a new policy requirement.

#### LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:

Local Government Act 1995, Section 3.57 Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 Local Government (Functions and General) Amendment Regulations 2007

#### **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

Council's role is to adopt policy for officers to follow to ensure functions are being carried out within the intention of Council.

#### SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

Although there are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal the policy may improve purchasing practices and result in cost savings and/or purchase of a more appropriate good/service.

# Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

# **FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no financial implications to Council in relation to this item.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

59/07 Moved Cr Barrett-Lennard, seconded Cr Hawkins that Council adopts the attached document "Draft Purchasing and Tender Policy" and the policy becomes Policy FIN 002 – Purchasing and Tender Policy.

CARRIED 9/0

# 11.1.2 SHIRE OF MOORA ANNUAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT RETURN FOR 2006

 FILE REFERENCE:
 GA/SCOI

 REPORT DATE:
 22 March 2007

 APPLICANT/PROPONENT: Department of Local Government & Regional Development

 DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: The author has no financial interest in this matter, however declares an impartiality/conflict interest pursuant to Council's Code of Conduct arising from the author's statutory compliance responsibilities as CEO. The author declares that he will put aside the interest and consider the matter without bias.

 PREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES: Not Applicable

 AUTHOR:
 Steven Deckert, Chief Executive Officer

AUTHOR:Steven Deckert, Chief Executive OfficerATTACHMENTS:2006 Compliance Audit Return

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

The 2006 statutory Compliance Audit Return has been completed for the 2006 calendar year and is being presented to Council for adoption.

# **BACKGROUND:**

Section 7.13(i) of the Local Government Act 1995 contains provisions for the making of regulations requiring local governments to carry out, in the manner and form prescribed, an audit of compliance whether of a financial nature or not. Local Government (Audit) Regulations prescribe in more detail the requirements of the compliance audit including the requirement for Council to submit a certified copy of the return by 31 March to the Executive Director of the Department.

The Return is considered a very useful device for local governments to check their level of compliance with the legislative requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 and other relevant legislation. Also, the Return forms an important part of the Shire's monitoring program. There is a legal requirement to annually complete the Return.

# COMMENT:

Last year, Council engaged the services of the Department of Local Government and Regional Development to conduct the 2005 compliance audit. This resulted in a detailed report identifying a number of non-compliances. Subsequently, Manex prepared a report to Council outlining how these non-compliances were to be addressed. The timeframes in the Manex Report indicated that the non-compliances would be addressed by the end of the first quarter of 2007. Whilst some non-compliances have been resolved a number are still outstanding and it is anticipated that these will be progressively addressed during the remainder of 2007. The March 2007 deadline has not been possible due to staff vacancies and other priorities resulting from a high workload.

The 2006 Compliance Audit has been completed by staff and a copy of the Return is enclosed with this agenda. As a consequence of not being able to address all non-compliances of 2005, Council will note that there are still a number of non-compliances. In fact, as these will only be addressed this financial year, the Compliance Audit for 2007 will also report a number of non-compliances, with 2008 being the year that our Return should demonstrate a positive improvement.

Council is now required to consider the enclosed Compliance Audit Return and adopt the Return either with or without modification. Once adopted by Council, the Shire President and the Chief Executive Officer can sign the certification and submit the Return to the Executive Director.

# **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

There is no Council Policy relative to this issue.

# **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

- Section 7.13 (i) of the Local Government Act 1995; and
- Local Government (Audit) Regulations 13, 14 and 15.

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no known strategic implications associated with this proposal.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

> Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no budget or financial implications relative to this issue, though staff resources will be required to implement improvements to rectify non-compliances

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS:**

Simple Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

60/07 Moved Cr Gardiner, seconded Cr Hawkins that Council adopts the attached Compliance Audit Return as the official Return of the Council for the period I January 2006 to 31 December 2006 and forward it, along with the signed Joint Certification by the President and CEO, to the Executive Director of the Department of Local Government.

CARRIED 9/0

#### 11.1.3 ADOPTION OF SHIRE OF MOORA COMMON SEAL

 REPORT DATE:
 22<sup>nd</sup> March 2007

 OFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: Nil

 PREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES: Nil

 AUTHOR:
 Rebecca McCall, Corporate Services Officer &

 Mishelle Museur, Eucentrice Support Officer

ATTACHMENTS:

Rebecca McCall, Corporate Services Officer & Michelle Murray, Executive Support Officer Common Seal Proof

#### **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

For Council to adopt the new Common Seal for the Shire of Moora.

#### **BACKGROUND:**

On 14<sup>th</sup> April 2004 Council adopted a new brand for the Shire of Moora. A new common seal needs to be adopted incorporating the new brand to replace the previous seal, which is now obsolete due to the adoption of council's current brand.

#### COMMENT:

A quote has been received for an official seal for the Shire of Moora designed to incorporate council's new brand.

Under the Local Govt. Act Council must adopt any new seal that is to be in sole use of that Council.

#### **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Nil

#### **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

Section 2.5(2) of the Local Govt. Act 1995 requires Local Governments to have a common seal.

#### **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no known strategic implications associated with this proposal.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

# Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

#### Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

#### FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Cost to Council for producing the self-inking Common Seal is \$37.95.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

#### COUNCIL RESOLUTION (OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

61/07 Moved Cr McLagan, seconded Cr Hawkins that Council adopt the replacement Shire of Moora Common Seal as attached.

CARRIED 9/0

# 11.2 FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT

# 11.2.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2007

REPORT DATE:23 March 2007OFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST:NilAUTHOR:Jo-Anne Ellis, Financial Development ManagerATTACHMENTS:Statement of Financial Activity for the Period Ended 28<br/>February 2007

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To note and receive the Statement of Financial Activity for the period ended 28 February 2007.

# **BACKGROUND:**

Council is provided with monthly financial reports to enable monitoring of revenues and expenditures against the adopted budget.

# COMMENT:

The Statement of Financial Activity for the Period Ended 28 February 2007 is provided as a separate attachment.

# **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Nil

#### LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:

Local Government Act 1995, Section 6.4 Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, Sec. 34

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

Monitoring of actual revenues and expenditures against the adopted budget assists Council in being informed as the financial health of the organisation.

#### SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

#### Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

#### Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

#### **FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:**

Year to date income and expenditure is provided by line item to enable comparison to 2006/07 adopted budget.

#### **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

#### COUNCIL RESOLUTION (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION)

62/07 Moved Cr Tonkin, seconded Cr Clydesdale-Gebert that Council note and receive the Statement of Financial Activity for the period ended 28 February 2007.

CARRIED 9/0

# 11.2.2 ADOPTION OF NEW POLICY - FIN 001 - INVESTMENT POLICY

FILE REFERENCE:	PL/POP1			
REPORT DATE:	22 March 2007			
APPLICANT/PROPONENT: N/A				
OFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: Nil				
PREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES: Nil				
AUTHOR:	Jo-Anne Ellis, Financial Development Manager			
ATTACHMENTS:	Draft Investment Policy			

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

This report is to consider adoption of an investment policy to provide guidelines for investment of Municipal Funds, which are surplus to immediate requirements, and for the investment of Reserve Funds.

# **BACKGROUND:**

During the 2005/06 audit process it was raised by audit that the Shire of Moora did not have a current investment policy. On recommendation of the audit committee Council resolved by decision 264/06 that a draft investment policy be presented to the March 2007 Council meeting.

# COMMENT:

A draft policy is attached for Councils consideration.

The requirements under this policy will involve increased reporting to Council to enable better monitoring and oversight of investments.

All Councils policies require reviewing and updating. As part of this process a new numbering system is suggested. The policy number recommended for this policy is FIN 001.

# **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Adoption of this draft policy will create a new policy requirement.

# LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:

Local Government Act 1995, Section 6.15 Trustees Act 1962, Section 18 (1)

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

An objective of managing investments to maximise return within agreed risk parameters will assist Council in achieving its strategic objective as earnings from investments are utilised as Municipal Revenue or increase the value of Reserves.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

# Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

# > Economic

Prudent but effective investment of funds not required for immediate use provides additional funds for Council operations or increases value of Reserves.

Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Revenues from investments are included in the annual budget. This policy formalises the investment of these funds. Other than this there are no financial implications to Council in relation to this item.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

63/07 Moved Cr Pond, seconded Cr Tonkin that Council adopts the attached document "Draft Investment Policy" and the policy becomes Policy FIN 001 – Investment Policy.

CARRIED 9/0

# 11.2.3 <u>DELEGATION 1.32</u> INVESTMENT OF MUNICIPAL FUNDS AND RESERVE FUNDS

FILE REFERENCE:PL/POPIREPORT DATE:22nd March 2007APPLICANT/PROPONENT:N/AOFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST:NilPREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES:NilAUTHOR:Jo-Anne Ellis, Financial Development ManagerATTACHMENTS:Delegation 1.32 Investment of Municipal Funds and Reserve<br/>Funds

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To delegate the power to invest Municipal Funds which are surplus to immediate requirements and for the investment of Reserve Funds.

# **BACKGROUND:**

A draft Investment Policy is included in this agenda at item 11.2.2. This policy refers to delegations of authority at section 1.3. A current delegation is required for this policy to operate as intended.

# COMMENT:

Council has the power to delegate the powers to invest surplus funds to the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer has the power to Sub-Delegate this power to another officer.

The intention of the Chief Executive Officer is to sub-delegate this authority to the Financial Development Manager.

Policy FIN 001 – Investment Policy will apply should the recommendation at item 11.2.2 be adopted.

# **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

Local Government Act 1995, Section 5.42 & 5.44

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no known strategic implications associated with this proposal.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

# Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

# > Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

# Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no financial implications to Council in relation to this item.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Absolute Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

64/07 Moved Cr Gardiner, seconded Cr Pond that pursuant to Section 5.42 of the Local Government Act Council delegates the power to invest Municipal Funds and Reserve Funds to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with attached delegation DA 1.32

# CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 9/0

# 11.3 OPERATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

# 11.3.1 <u>GREAT NORTHERN HIGHWAY PROPOSED ROAD UPGRADES – LAND</u> <u>RESUMPTIONS BETWEEN WALEBING AND BINDI BINDI</u>

FILE REFERENCE:S/ROGIREPORT DATE:21st March 2007APPLICANT/PROPONENT:Main Roads Western AustraliaOFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST:NilPREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES:NilAUTHOR:John Greay, Operational Development ManagerATTACHMENTS:Realignment Maps (8)

#### **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To advise council of Main Roads Western Australia (MRWA) roadwork's proposals.

#### **BACKGROUND:**

Several months ago Mr Norm Fox MRWA Projects Director visited council and discussed possible upgrades on the Gt Northern Highway, particularly between Walebing and Bindi Bindi.

#### COMMENT:

Land resumptions are required from property owners to enable the proposed work to be undertaken. A total of 15 parcels of land will be impacted upon ranging in size from  $632m^2$  to 17.3159ha.

The Shire of Moora Road network will also be impacted upon where the Great Northern Highway intersects with Edibegebege, Cranmore and Indarrie Roads. Road lengths within our ROMANS System may require slight adjustments to overall lengths. Also at the intersection of Edibegebege and Cranmore Roads there is a concrete block entrance at one intersection and a gate and cattle grid at another. These two structures have been in place for well over 40 years and no one would know if council ever approved both structures. The MRWA need to move at least one of these structures and are prepared to reconstruct it at no cost to council or the current landowner.

Council will need to develop a policy and a register of all of these types of structures throughout the shire and have agreements with the landowners who have constructed them in case there is a liability issue at a later date.

#### **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Need to develop a policy in regard to structures such as cattle grids and gateways across public roads.

#### **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

Under the Local Government Act 1995 schedule 9.1. It is required to have a register of gates across thoroughfares.

#### **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

These roads that have these types of structures across them could have a strategic implication in the event of an emergency.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### Environment

In regard to the proposed upgrades along the highway MRWA will be responsible for any environmental impacts.

# Economic

MRWA will again address those issues but it is logical that there will be some economic benefits in having a better highway to travel on.

#### Social

In regard to social implications it is fair to assume that there will be the opportunity for greater social interaction between regions due to major highway improvements.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no financial implications to Council in relation to this item in this financial year.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATIONS)

#### 65/07 Moved Cr Gardiner, seconded Cr Tonkin that

- 1. the land resumptions detailed in attached realignment maps (8) required by Main Roads WA for the proposed upgrades on the Great Northern Highway between Walebing and Bindi Bindi be approved.
- 2. Main Roads WA be requested to meet the cost of any adjustments to councils ROMANS system should there be any alteration to the road length of any of the intersecting roads that would normally come under the control of the Shire of Moora.
- 3. Council advise Main Roads WA that it has no objections to the construction of a new concrete block entrance at the intersection of Edibegebege road and Great Northern Highway subject to council being indemnified.
- 4. Council develop a policy and a register in regard to gateways and structures across council controlled road and thoroughfares by 30<sup>th</sup> June 2007.

CARRIED 9/0

# 11.4 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

# 11.4.1 TOWN PLANNING SCHEME NO 4 - DELEGATION OF POWERS

FILE REFERENCE:TP/PTM11REPORT DATE:20th March 2007APPLICANT/PROPONENT:VariousOFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST:NilPREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES:NilAUTHOR:Michael Prunster, Community Development ManagerATTACHMENTS:Nil

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To note the town planning applications approved under delegated authority.

# **BACKGROUND:**

Council resolved by absolute majority at the Council meeting held on the 25 February 2004, to delegate the Manager Corporate Services (now Community Development Manager) to approve planning applications that meet all the requirements of Councils Town Planning Scheme, for an indefinite period of time and amend its Register of Delegations accordingly, and that Council be provided with a list monthly of planning approvals issued under delegate authority.

# **APPLICANT (S)**

The following Town Planning Applications have been approved under this delegated authority for the period ended  $20^{th}$  March 2007.

- W & S Waters on behalf of Megan James (Tenant) Loc 195 Indarrie Road, Bindi Bindi – Operate a Home Occupation (Cottage Industry) in preparing Jams, Relish's, Cakes etc for sale at Craft Fairs & Markets subject to approval by the Manager of Health & Regulatory Services Zoning – Farming (Ref 34/0607)
- Dept. of Housing & Works on behalf of the CMSHS Reserve 29962 Ranfurly Street, Moora – Placement of a Temporary Transportable Classroom at the Central Midlands Senior High School, Moora Zoning – Public Purpose (Ref 35/0607)

# **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Register of Delegations and Shire of Moora Town Planning Scheme No 4 Text.

# **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

There are no known legislative requirements related to this item.

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no known strategic implications associated with this proposal.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

# **FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no financial implications to Council in relation to this item.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

66/07 Moved Cr Barrett-Lennard, seconded Cr Tonkin that Council note the town planning applications approved under delegated authority.

CARRIED 9/0

# 11.4.2 KEEPING HORSES - RURAL TOWNSITE - J. & L. TIMMINS

FILE REFERENCE:PA/857-1REPORT DATE:21 March 2007APPLICANT/PROPONENT:J. & L. TimminsOFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: NilPREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES: NilAUTHOR:Michael Prunster, Community Development ManagerATTACHMENTS:Copy of map indicating position of Lot

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

Request received from Mrs Timmins for permission to keep a Horse on their Lot 90 York Street Watheroo.

# **BACKGROUND:**

Lot 90 York Street Watheroo is zoned "Rural Townsite".

Council does not have a current local law provision for keeping of horses, but there is a Council Policy in relation to the keeping of Horses and Hooved Animals on Residential and other categories of zoning.

The following is an extract of this policy No 7.7: -

# 7.7 Keeping Horses and Hooved Animals on Residential Zoned Land.

That the following policy applies to the Keeping of Horses and other Hooved Animals on Residential Zoned Land as defined by the Moora Town Planning Scheme.

- I. In respect to a residential lot of land having an area of 4,000 square metres or less, a person shall not keep, or permit to be kept thereon, any hooved animal being horses, cows, sheep, goats, donkey or such.
- 2. In respect to a residential lot of land exceeding 4,000 square metres in area, a person shall not keep any more that two such hooved animals without having first received written approval of the Council specifying the number of such animals that may be kept thereon, but such approval may be cancelled by the Council in any case where, having regard to the circumstances, it is of the opinion that such cancellation is warranted.
- 3. A person shall not allow any hooved animal to approach to within 20 metres of any dwelling whatsoever, or other building where food is stored or prepared, or to within 15 metres of any street adjoining such property without having first received the written approval of Council specifying a lesser distance, but such approval may be cancelled by the Council in any case where, having regard to the circumstances, it is of the opinion that such cancellation is warranted.

#### NOTE:

This policy shall apply to any land within the townsite zoned Single Residential, Group Residential, and Rural Residential under the Moora Town Planning Scheme No 3.

A lot of land means any land area having individual Certificate of Title.

# COMMENT:

The note to this policy does not indicate "Rural Townsite" zoning although it does refer to "Rural Residential" land, which is analogous with this zoning. Under the policy it does not permit the keeping of hooved animals within an area of less than  $4,000m^2$  and lot 90 has an area of only  $2151m^2$ .

Council can consider an application under clause 3.2.5 of the Town Planning Scheme text No 4 which reads: -

- 3.2.5 If the use of land for a particular purpose is not specifically mentioned in the Zoning Table and cannot reasonably be determined as falling within the interpretation of one of the use categories the Council may:
  - a) determine that the use is consistent with the objectives and purposes of the particular zone and is therefore permitted; or
  - b) determine that the proposed use may be consistent with the objectives and purposes of the zone and thereafter follow the "SA" advertising procedures of clause 7.3 in considering an application for planning approval; or
  - c) determine that the use is not consistent with the objectives and purposes of the particular zone and is therefore not permitted.

Lot 90 is located on the southern most end of York Street and the adjacent southern area of land is zoned "Farming".

Other sections of York Street adjacent to lot 90 are residential lots, some vacant and others with dwellings.

Council has the power under the Town Planning Scheme to consider the application for approval under section 3.2.5 of the scheme, but the area of lot 90 is 2151m<sup>2</sup> and under

Council Policy 7.7 this does not meet the conditions for keeping a horse on the property. If permission was granted, it could create future health/social problems with complaints from nearby residents because of the small area.

# **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Council Policy 7.7 – Keeping Horses and Hooved Animals on Residential Land.

# **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

Local Government Health Regulations

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

There are no known strategic implications associated with this proposal.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### Environment

Approval of the application may create future health/environment problems within the small area of land available.

# Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

#### > Social

Approval may have future adverse effects on social relations with adjoining neighbours.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no financial implications to Council in relation to this item.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

#### COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

67/07 Moved Cr Pond, seconded Cr Tonkin that Council refuse the application from Messrs J. & L. Timmins to keep a horse on lot 90 York Street Watheroo, as the area of the lot does not meet the criteria for keeping a horse under the conditions outlined in Council's "Keeping Horses and Hooved Animals on Residential Zoned Land" policy.

CARRIED 7/2

# 11.5 ENVIRONMENTAL DEVELOPMENT

Nil

# 11.6 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Nil

# 11.7 SPORT AND RECREATION

# 11.7.1 "BE ACTIVE COORDINATOR" - FEBRUARY REPORT 2007

FILE REFERENCE:	BA/REPI			
REPORT DATE:	21 <sup>st</sup> March 2007			
OFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: Nil				
PREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCES: 13 September 2006 (187/06)				
AUTHOR:	Angela Murray, Be Active Coordinator &			
	Michael Prunster, Community Development Manager			
ATTACHMENTS:	Be Active Report – Feb 2007			

#### **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

Reporting period of February 2007 from the Be Active Coordinator for Council information and acknowledgment.

#### **BACKGROUND:**

It is current practice for the Be Active Coordinator to periodically provide Council with a report to date of programmes and activities carried out during the current financial year.

#### COMMENT:

The report prepared by Ms Angela Murray, Be Active Coordinator, covers programmes and activities that have been carried out within the four participating Shires (Moora, Chittering, Victoria Plains and Dandaragan).

The report has also been provided to the other participating shires.

#### **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

Nil

#### **LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:**

There are no known legislative requirements related to this item.

# **STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:**

Continued activities through this programme within each participating Council's are of great benefit to the residents and youth of these Districts, which without this sponsorship the projects would not normally be available to them.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### Environment

The outdoor activities participants awareness of the environment and creates a better environmental outlook on the life of the people involved.

#### Economic

Participants contribute to the cost of certain programmes.

#### Social

The programmes organised by the B.A.C. have a healthy impact on the social and cultural activities of young and old residents of the Shires involved.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

The four Shires participating in the programme fund the programmes on a percentage basis.

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS**

Simple Majority Required

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (MANEX RECOMMENDATION)

68/07 Moved Cr Hawkins, seconded Cr Craven that Council note and receive the Be Active Report for the period ended February 2007.

CARRIED 9/0

# 12. <u>ELECTED MEMBER MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN</u>

Nil

# 13. MOTIONS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF COUNCIL

The Chief Executive Officer tabled a late item dealing with the 'Corporate Wardrobe Policy', for Council's consideration.

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION

69/07 Moved Cr Gardiner, seconded Cr McLagan that Council consider the late item as tabled by the CEO titled "Corporate Wardrobe Policy".

CARRIED 8/I

# 13.1 CORPORATE WARDROBE POLICY

FILE REFERENCE:PL/POP1REPORT DATE:26 March 2007APPLICANT/PROPONENT:Nil

OFFICER DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: The author declares a financial interest in this matter as the recipient of a Council uniform. This extent of this interest is to the value of the uniform subsidy provided under Council's policy. AUTHOR: Rebecca McCall. Corporate Services Officer

AUTHOR:	Rebecca McCall, Corporate Services Officer
ATTACHMENTS:	Existing Corporate Uniform Scheme

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To consider a new Council Policy with the intent to standardise dress of Council's administrative and childcare staff and promote Council's image.

# BACKGROUND:

Council some time ago adopted a policy titled 'Corporate Uniform Scheme – Guidelines' whereby Council contributes on a \$1 on \$1 cost sharing basis, up to a maximum of \$200 per year and prohibits new employees being eligible for the subsidy when purchasing a corporate wardrobe until after their three month probation period.

Whilst the existing policy provided some benefit and incentive to employees, it no longer encourages employees to purchase a corporate wardrobe due to the high cost of acquiring standardised uniforms. Council's subsidy has diminished significantly in real terms, and is one the lowest within the shires in this region.

# COMMENT:

In order to provide a greater incentive for staff, a revised Corporate Wardrobe policy has been developed, which will encourage staff to wear standardised uniform and promote Council's image.

The proposed policy is:

- 1. A 'Corporate Wardrobe' subsidy will only be available to permanent full-time and parttime officers, and after a qualifying period of 3 months for new employees.
- 2. Contributions by Council will be up to \$350 maximum per year for new or replacement items for administration staff. The employee will meet any cost above \$350.
- 3. Contributions by Council will be up to \$200 maximum per year for new or replacement items for childcare staff. The employee will meet any cost above \$200.
- 4. Staff terminating with Council will be required to reimburse Council the pro-rata, on a diminishing basis, cost of the uniform they acquired since their anniversary of their start date.
- 5. Staff are to make every endeavour to maintain the corporate clothing in a clean and tidy condition and to wear such clothing as a complete outfit and not mix with personal clothing.
- 6. Staff shall not wear the uniform other than for work related purposes.

# **POLICY REQUIREMENTS:**

The Council will supply clothing to Council administrative staff in accordance with the adoption of the revised Corporate Wardrobe Policy. This new policy will override the existing Corporate Uniform Scheme – Guidelines (refer to attachment).

# LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS:

Sections 52.7 and 3.1 of the Local Government Act 1995 refer to the general competency powers of local governments providing local government to the district. This includes the adoption of policies to provide clear and consistent decision-making.

# STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS:

The adoption of this policy will result in all staff wearing a uniform that will promote a positive and professional image.

# SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:

#### > Environment

There are no known significant environmental implications associated with this proposal.

# > Economic

There are no known significant economic implications associated with this proposal.

#### Social

There are no known significant social implications associated with this proposal.

# FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

The financial implications to Council are: Existing policy - \$3,800 New policy - \$5,900 Difference - \$2,100

# **VOTING REQUIREMENTS:**

Simple Majority

# COUNCIL RESOLUTION (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION)

Moved Cr Craven, seconded Cr McLagan that Council adopts the following policy for the Corporate Wardrobe Policy to replace the previous policy:

- 1. A 'Corporate Wardrobe' subsidy will only be available to permanent full-time and part-time officers, and after a qualifying period of 3 months for new employees.
- 2. Contributions by Council will be up to \$350 maximum per year for new or replacement items for administration staff. The employee will meet any cost above \$350.
- 3. Contributions by Council will be up to \$200 maximum per year for new or replacement items for childcare staff. The employee will meet any cost above \$200.
- 4. Staff terminating with Council will be required to reimburse Council the pro-rata, on a diminishing basis, cost of the uniform they acquired since their anniversary of their start date.
- 5. Staff should make every endeavour to maintain the corporate clothing in a clean and tidy condition and to wear such clothing as a complete outfit and not mix with personal clothing.
- 6. Staff shall not wear the uniform other than for work related purposes.

#### LOST 4/5

# 14. NOTICE ON MOTIONS FOR THE NEXT COUNCIL MEETING

Nil

# 15. MATTERS BEHIND CLOSED DOORS

Nil

Prior to the meeting closing Mr Jim McNamara thanked the Shire for their support during the fire season. The Shire President acknowledged Mr McNamara's appreciation.

# 16. <u>CLOSURE OF MEETING</u>

There being no further business, the Shire President thanked the members of the public for their attendance and input and invited all to stay for fellowship.

The meeting was declared closed at 7.30pm.

# CONFIRMED

# **PRESIDING MEMBER**